
Notice of Meeting

Licensing Sub-
Committee
Tuesday 24 September 2019 at 10.00am
in the Roger Croft Room  Council Offices  
Market Street  Newbury

Members Interests
Note:  If you consider you may have an interest in any Application included on 
this agenda then please seek early advice from the appropriate officers.

Date of despatch of Agenda:  Monday, 16 September 2019

FURTHER INFORMATION FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC

If you require further information about this Agenda, or to inspect any background 
documents mentioned in the reports, please contact Stephen Chard.

Further information and Minutes are also available on the Council’s website at 
www.westberks.gov.uk 

The Vault Club, 4A The Kennet Centre, Newbury

Scan here to access the public 
documents for this meeting

Public Document Pack

http://www.westberks.gov.uk/


Agenda - Licensing Sub-Committee to be held on Tuesday, 24 September 2019 
(continued)

To: Councillors Jeff Beck, James Cole (Chairman) and Tony Linden
Substitute: Councillor Dennis Benneyworth

Agenda
Part I Page No.

1   Declarations of Interest
To receive any declarations of interest from Members.

2   Schedule of Licensing Applications

(1)    Application No. 17/01614/LQN - The Vault Club, 4A The Kennet Centre, 
Newbury

5 - 96

Proposal: To review the premises licence under Section 51 of the 
Licensing Act 2003. 

Location: The Vault Club, 4A The Kennet Centre, Newbury, RG14 5EN
Applicant: Thames Valley Police

Sarah Clarke
Head of Legal and Strategic Support

If you require this information in a different format or translation, please contact 
Moira Fraser on telephone (01635) 519045.



West Berkshire Council

Application for the review of a premises licence or club premises certificate under the 
Licensing Act 2003

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST

Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form.
If you are completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all cases ensure 
that your answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use additional sheets if necessary.
You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records. 

I Simon Wheeler, on behalf of the Chief Constable of Thames Valley Police
  (Insert name of applicant)
apply for the review of a premises licence under section 51 of the Licensing Act 2003 for the 
premises described in part 1 below:

Part 1 – Premises or club premises details  

Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or description

The Vault Club
4A The Kennet Centre

Post town   Newbury Post code (if known)  RG14 5EN

Name of premises licence holder or club holding club premises certificate (if known)

Big Fish Clubs UK Ltd

Number of premises licence or club premises certificate (if known) 

17/01614/LQN

Part 2 - Applicant details 

I am
Please tick  yes

 
1) an individual, body or business which is not a responsible 
authority (please read guidance note 1, and complete (A) 
or (B) below)

2) a responsible authority (please complete (C) below)

3) a member of the club to which this application relates 
(please complete (A) below)

   

Page 3

Agenda Item 2(1)



(A) DETAILS OF INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (fill in as applicable)

Please tick  yes

Mr Mrs Miss Ms Other title      
(for example, Rev)

Surname First names
          

Please tick  yes
I am 18 years old or over

Current postal 
address if 
different from 
premises 
address

     

Post town      Post Code      

Daytime contact telephone number      

E-mail address 
(optional) 

     

(B)  DETAILS OF OTHER APPLICANT

Name and address
     

Telephone number (if any)
     
E-mail address (optional) 
     

Page 4



 (C)  DETAILS OF RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY APPLICANT

Name and address

Thames Valley Police
C/O Reading/ West Berkshire Licensing Dept
Reading Police Station
Castle Street
Reading
RG1 7TH

Telephone number (if any)
101
E-mail address (optional) 
Licensing@thamesvalley.pnn.police.uk

 

This application to review relates to the following licensing objective(s)

Please tick one or more boxes 
1) the prevention of crime and disorder
2) public safety
3) the prevention of public nuisance
4) the protection of children from harm

Page 5



Please state the ground(s) for review (please read guidance note 2)

Thames Valley Police (TVP) as a responsible authority under the Licensing Act 2003 and under 
the objectives of prevention of crime and disorder, public safety, the prevention of public nuisance 
and the protection of children from harm make an application for the review of Premises Licence 
No. 17/01614/LQN The Vault Club, 4A The Kennet Centre Newbury, Berkshire, RG14 5EN.

The Vault Club premises licence was issued on 12th January 2018 after lengthy consultations with 
Thames Valley Police to establish a suitable operating schedule that contained what were hoped to 
be sufficient conditions to ensure that the premises once operated would promote and not 
undermine the licensing objectives.

Historically the site suffered numerous incidents which specifically negatively impacted the 
prevention of crime and disorder licensing objective and it is our current understanding that it was 
the impending review of the premises licence which prompted the previous premises licence 
holders to withdraw the licence and vacate the property.

Since the licence has been in operation a number of incidents have occurred at the premises 
ranging from public order incidents, assaults, vulnerability of customers, inconsistencies in door 
supervision and concerns regarding under 18 and boxing events.

These concerns have been compounded by two extremely poor licensing inspections which have 
shown inherent failures to comply with licensing conditions in relation to areas such as quality and 
provision of CCTV and usage of the Newbury radio system and ID scan equipment, as well as the 
majority of other conditions contained within the licence.

These poor inspection results and subsequent identified licence breaches have led to the issuing of 
two Section 19 closure notices and letters to the premises licence holders neither which have not 
led to any improvements at the premises or any greater compliance.

On 22nd February 2019 Thames Valley Police arranged a performance meeting to be held with the 
premises licence holder to address our concerns, however the premises licence holder or any other 
representative failed to turn up to the meeting. 

Thames Valley Police are of the opinion that this premises licence is failing to promote the four 
licensing objectives and that a review of the premises licence is required in order to address 
serious concerns surrounding the management of the venue and failure to comply with the 
conditions outlined within the operating schedule, as numerous interventions to this point have 
failed to address these serious concerns.

Page 6



Please provide as much information as possible to support the application (please read 
guidance note 3)

The following chronology refers in relation to this premises licence review:-

12/01/2018 – Assault occurred on the dancefloor whereby a male was punched and apprehended a 
black eye. This incident was NOT reported to Police on the night and the offender was ejected 
without their details being recorded. Officers note the investigation failed because CCTV could 
not be produced by staff and in any case was of inadequate quality. (SEE APPENDIX 1 & 2a 
2&b)

13/01/2018 – Report from PS Chapman reporting that initially a door book was not available on 
site and later on it was illegible once available. Also references poor queuing processes. (SEE 
APPENDIX 3)

19/01/2018 – Report from Officer 3947 Peel in relation to a serious sexual offence committed 
against a female whom had left the club in an extremely intoxicated and vulnerable condition 
having been ejected from the premises due to intoxication. Concerns were raised at the time as to 
the amount of alcohol served to the female whom had also preloaded alcohol prior to her arrival. 
The incident also raises concerns over the duty of care of staff allowing her to be removed to a 
nearby bus stop without ongoing supervision. (SEE APPENDIX 4)

26/01/2018 – Joint Thames Valley Police/ West Berkshire Council inspection of the premises took 
place whereby a number of key licence conditions were discovered to have been in breach. A 
Section 19 closure notice was issued for CCTV rectification. (SEE APPENDIX 5 & 6)

04/02/2018 – Report from PC Thomas detailing that a male had disclosed to him that a member of 
the door team had stated that he would let someone into the club after the 0130 last entry time if 
they paid him £20 to do it. (SEE APPENDIX 7)

10/02/2018 – Report from PC Burford referencing an incident whereby door staff had been bitten 
by a male. On this occasion the door personnel performed well. (SEE APPENDIX 8)

11/02/2019 – Report from PC Hill detailing an allegation that a door supervisor punched her. 
Police were able to meet the victim and confirm that she had bruising to her face however no 
further complaint was made. (SEE APPENDIX 9)

28/02/2018 – Letter to the Designated Premises Supervisor from Andy Dean (TVP) regarding an 
intention to further visit the premises on 8th March 2018. (SEE APPENDIX 10)

03/03/2018 – Report from PC Hanson stating that Police were required to attend the premises to 
deal with a male committing public order offences. The officer notes that the door staff appeared 
overly aggressive and unprofessional in their mannerisms, by swearing and smoking. (SEE 
APPENDIX 11)

04/03/2018 – Letter to the DPS from PC Wheeler outlining the breaches of conditions discovered 
during the visit on 26/01/2018. (SEE APPENDIX 12)

10/03/2018 – Report from PC Bull that Police were requested to attend for a detained male that 
had assaulted the manager. However when Police arrived they were informed that the assailant 
had been let go because the manager had told them he did not want Police at his premises. (SEE 
APPENDIX 13)

18/03/2018 – Report from PC Burford detailing that staff at the premises had detained a drunk 
male whom had assaulted two females and had threatened to fight the door staff. (SEE 
APPENDIX 14a)

Page 7



Further report from PC Hubbard-Clark detailing second incident which occurred at the same time 
as the first and the officers concerns regarding gaining information from within the club and 
difficulties surrounding the smoking area. (SEE APPENDIX 14b)

25/03/2018 – Report from PS Chapman stating that a door supervisor had been punched by a 
customer and restrained, but allowed up as soon as Police arrived causing further disorder due to 
him being released from restraint. The report also indicates a concern regarding the lack of 
available CCTV coverage of the external area and advice provided to rectify coverage. (SEE 
APPENDIX 15)

05/05/2018 – Report from PC Howard detailing a complaint from a female whom stated that 
having had a drink thrown over her within the premises that she was upset at the treatment she 
received from door supervisors who made no attempt to address the situation, and refused to 
provide her with their SIA badge details which she required to make a complaint. (SEE 
APPENDIX 16)

05/05/2018 – Report from PC Gawronski outlining that a male had been detained for using white 
powder in the toilets of the club and how door staff dealt with him in a professional manner. (SEE 
APPENDIX 17)

15/05/2018 – PC Thomas reports that staff from Vaults aided officers dealing with an aggressive 
and assaultive male and received praise for their efforts. (SEE APPENDIX 18)

01/12/2018 – Report from PC Herd stating that an unknown member of staff from Vaults confided 
in her that it was a known fact that large amounts of drugs were being passed and consumed 
within the premises. (SEE APPENDIX 19).

10/01/2019 – A second Section 19 Closure Notice was issued to the premises by PC Allen; this 
time again for failure to comply with the CCTV licence condition as well as the ID scan device 
not working or being used in accordance with their conditions, and a failure to utilise a town link 
radio. (SEE APPENDIX 20)

02-03/02/2019 – Report from PC Anderson providing information on a series of disorders in the 
town at other venues which were linked to persons whom had attended a Boxing promotion at 
Vaults earlier in the evening, raising concerns over the attendees at future events. (SEE 
APPENDIX 21)

09/02/2019 – Inspection carried out at the premises by PC Allen, the Officer notes that the ID scan 
condition was not complied with, CCTV still did not cover all licensable areas, an event plan had 
not been submitted for the previous Boxing event, the radio system was not in use and no training 
records were available. These are all breaches of condition and other concerns were also noted. 
(SEE APPENDIX 22)

13/02/2019 – Letter to Designated Premises Supervisor from PC Sowden outlining a number of 
condition breaches discovered during the inspection on 09/02/2019 and requesting attendance at a 
performance meeting on 22/02/2019. (SEE APPENDIX 23)

22/02/2019 – Mr Anderson failed to attend the pre-arranged performance meeting scheduled 
within the letter sent on 13/02/2019 by PC Sowden. (Detailed within premises summary report)
21/02/2019 – Report from PC Hall in relation to an under 18’s night at the club, where 18 year 
olds were also allowed into the premises! It was confirmed that no alcohol was allowed to be sold 
however two children were located inside the premises in possession of small bags of drugs 
including Cocaine and Ketamine. The officer confirms that random searching only was taking 
place for this event. (SEE APPENDIX 24)

05/06/2019 – Chief Inspector Finch sent a letter to Mr Anderson with regards to a forthcoming 
boxing event. Within the letter she details the failure of the Premises Licence Holder/Designated 

Page 8



Premises Supervisor to notify Thames Valley Police of the event and submit a written event 
management plan contrary to the premises licence conditions. Chief Inspector Finch also outlines 
the breaches discovered by officers within the inspection earlier in the year and due to these facts 
objected to the event taking place as is allowed within the premises licence conditions, and with 
regard for public safety. (SEE APPENDIX 25)

15/06/2019 – The planned Boxing event was cancelled at the premises a short time before 
commencement.

In conclusion Thames Valley Police have taken this most serious step of applying for the review 
of this premises licence as clearly from the evidence above there are inherent issues in relation to 
non-compliance with the Licensing Act 2003 and a failure to promote the four licensing 
objectives.

The premises licence holders have little or no processes to ensure due diligence and it has been 
recorded during inspections that there is no training for staff in place, no suitable evidence of 
policies and procedures as required within the licence conditions, and minimal attempts have been 
made at any stage to rectify these concerns even after numerous interventions by the responsible 
authorities.

When coupling together the failure to comply with legislation, the failure to show any due 
diligence, the incidents of crime and disorder and disregard for the Licensing Act 2003, Thames 
Valley Police respectfully ask the Licensing Sub – Committee to consider the immediate 
revocation of the premises licence relating to The Vault Club as the only proportionate and 
necessary step available to prevent the further undermining of the four licensing objectives.

This recommendation has been made having precluded the other steps available to the Licensing 
Sub-Committee for the following reasons:

• the modification of the conditions of the premises licence;  

Thames Valley Police are of the opinion that the conditions on the licence are already suitable to 
promote the licensing objectives and they were devised specifically for this premises. However it 
is a failure of the premises licence holder to ensure that these conditions are complied with and 
there are no assurances available that any further conditions shall be implemented or adhered too.

• the exclusion of a licensable activity from the scope of the licence;  

The only licensable activity if excluded which may impact this premises licence would be the 
removal of the sale of alcohol and in this would in effect have the same effect as the revocation of 
the premises licence on a business such as this.

• the removal of the designated premises supervisor from the licence; 

Mr Anderson is also the owner and sole director of the premise licence holders company as well as 
the DPS and therefore his removal as DPS would not ensure any improvements are made as he 
shall remain in control of the business as the premises licence holder.

•  the suspension of the licence for a period not exceeding 3 months; and  

This may be an option that the licensing sub-committee consider, however this option can be used 
when improvements are expected and thus require time to be implemented. 

Unfortunately Thames Valley Police do not believe that this option is suitable in that there is no 
guarantee when considering the premises previous history that any improvements shall be made or 

Page 9



indeed adhered to in the long term.

If however this option was to be considered by the Sub-Committee as reasonable and 
proportionate we would ask that a caveat be added that the premises should not re-open until an 
inspection had been completed and it could be determined that ALL conditions on the licence 
were compliant.

Thames Valley Police would also like to highlight the relevant sections within the current 
secretary of state’s Section 182 guidance, and West Berkshire Councils Statement of Licensing 
Policy which we believe are relevant to our outlined concerns at this premises and support this 
review process:

Secretary of States Section 182 Guidance

10.2 Conditions include any limitations or restrictions attached to a licence or certificate and 
essentially are the steps or actions that the holder of the premises licence or the club premises 
certificate will be required to take or refrain from taking in relation to the carrying on of licensable 
activities at the premises in question. Failure to comply with any condition attached to a 
licence or certificate is a criminal offence, which on conviction is punishable by an unlimited 
fine or up to six months’ imprisonment. The courts have made clear that it is particularly 
important that conditions which are imprecise or difficult for a licence holder to observe should be 
avoided. 

11.10 Where authorised persons and responsible authorities have concerns about problems 
identified at premises, it is good practice for them to give licence holders early warning of 
their concerns and the need for improvement, and where possible they should advise the 
licence or certificate holder of the steps they need to take to address those concerns. A failure 
by the holder to respond to such warnings is expected to lead to a decision to apply for a 
review. Co-operation at a local level in promoting the licensing objectives should be encouraged 
and reviews should not be used to undermine this cooperation. 

11.19 Where the licensing authority considers that action under its statutory powers is appropriate, 
it may take any of the following steps: 
• modify the conditions of the premises licence (which includes adding new conditions or 
any alteration or omission of an existing condition), for example, by reducing the hours of opening 
or by requiring door supervisors at particular times; 
• exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence, for example, to exclude the 
performance of live music or playing of recorded music (where it is not within the incidental live 
and recorded music exemption); 
• remove the designated premises supervisor, for example, because they consider that the 
problems are the result of poor management; 
• suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months; 
• revoke the licence. 

11.20 In deciding which of these powers to invoke, it is expected that licensing authorities 
should so far as possible seek to establish the cause or causes of the concerns that the 
representations identify. The remedial action taken should generally be directed at these causes 
and should always be no more than an appropriate and proportionate response to address the 
causes of concern that instigated the review. 

11.21 For example, licensing authorities should be alive to the possibility that the removal 
and replacement of the designated premises supervisor may be sufficient to remedy a 
problem where the cause of the identified problem directly relates to poor management 
decisions made by that individual. 

11.22 Equally, it may emerge that poor management is a direct reflection of poor company 
practice or policy and the mere removal of the designated premises supervisor may be an 

Page 10



inadequate response to the problems presented. Indeed, where subsequent review hearings are 
generated by representations, it should be rare merely to remove a succession of designated 
premises supervisors as this would be a clear indication of deeper problems that impact upon the 
licensing objectives.

West Berkshire Statement of Licensing policy

2.1 The Council is the Licensing Authority under the Act and is responsible for granting premises 
licences, club premises certificates, personal licences and acknowledging temporary event notices 
in the district. The aim of the licensing process is to regulate licensable activities so as to 
promote the licensing objectives.  

 2.7 The Licensing Authority recognises that conditions attached to various authorisations will 
be focussed on matters which are within the control of the licence holders. Conditions shall be 
proportionate and appropriate to achieve the promotion of the licensing objectives, and shall 
be tailored to suit the circumstances and premises.  

4.1 All applicants for the grant or variation of a premises licence or club premises certificate are 
required to provide an operating schedule as part of their application. This is a key document and, 
if prepared comprehensively, will form the basis on which premises can be licensed without the 
need for additional extensive conditions. The Council expects an operating schedule to indicate 
the steps that the applicant proposes to take to promote the licensing objectives. This should 
follow a thorough risk assessment relating to the specific premises and licensable activities 
proposed to take place.  
 
4.2 Applicants are strongly recommended to discuss their operating schedule with the 
responsible authorities prior to submitting the application. The Licensing Team can assist in 
co-ordinating this process. 
 
5.1 The Licensing Authority is committed to reducing crime and disorder to improve the 
quality of life for the people of West Berkshire. Good management and practice procedures 
in licensed premises can make an important contribution to lessening the impact that 
consumption of alcohol can have on crime and disorder. The Licensing Authority and Thames 
Valley Police through the Building Communities Together Partnership will regularly monitor and 
review crime statistics within the district and their association with alcohol. When applying 
conditions, the Council will be mindful of the local Community Safety Strategy. 

5.2 Licensees are encouraged to work in partnership with a local Pubwatch scheme to form 
strategies for actively preventing crime and disorder issues. This scheme encourages the sharing of 
information and seeks to address matters such as underage sales, drunkenness, illegal drug use and 
anti-social behaviour. 
 
5.3 Applicants will be expected to demonstrate in their operating schedule that suitable and 
sufficient measures have been identified and will be implemented and maintained to reduce 
or prevent crime and disorder on and in the vicinity of their premises, relevant to the 
individual style and characteristics of their premises and event.

Licensing Objective 4: Protection of Children from Harm 

8.1 This objective includes the protection of children from moral, psychological and physical 
harm. The applicant should initially identify any particular issues (having regard to their particular 
type of premises and/or activities) which are likely to cause concern in relation to children. 
Applicants will be expected to consider the risk of children being exposed to alcohol, drugs, 
gambling, activities of an adult and/or sexual nature and exposure to excessive noise or incidents 
of violence and disorder. Such steps as are required to deal with these identified concerns should 
be included within the applicant’s operating schedule. 

Page 11



8.6 Applicants are required, where appropriate, to set out in their operating schedule the 
arrangements they have in place to prevent the sale of alcohol and age restricted items to children. 
The Council expects all applicants to apply a Challenge 25 policy in respect of age restricted 
items. Where such a policy is not proposed within the operating schedule, it is expected that the 
applicant provides justification as to why such a policy is not required. The Licensing Authority 
recommends use of any of the following as an acceptable proof of age: 
 
(a) Passport 
(b) Photocard driving licence issued in the European Union 
(c) Proof of Age Standards Scheme Card (PASS) 
(d) Official ID card issued by HM Forces or by a European Union country bearing a photo 
and date of birth of holder. 
 
Consideration should also be given to training (including refresher training) for staff, and 
records to evidence this training. In addition there should be means of recording challenges 
and/or refusals relating to potential sales of alcohol to underage persons.  

15.1 A critical element of the proper control of licensable activity and a premises where such 
activity is provided is good management. The Council encourages all licence holders to consider 
what skills and competencies are required for the safe delivery of regulated activities and secure 
appropriately trained staff.  
 
15.2 Within all licensed premises, whether or not alcohol is to be sold, the Council will expect 
there to be proper management arrangements in place which will ensure that there is an 
appropriate number of responsible, trained/instructed persons at the premises to ensure the 
proper management of the premises and of the activities taking place, as well as adherence 
to all statutory duties and the terms and conditions of the premises licence.  

16.3 The Council undertakes proactive risk-based inspections of all licensed premises to ensure 
continued promotion of the licensing objectives and compliance with licence conditions. Premises 
that consistently fail inspections may be subject to a licence review or other enforcement 
action. Where one-off events are taking place, the Licensing Authority may also carry out 
inspections to ensure promotion of the licensing objectives.

Furthermore Thames Valley Police recommend that when considering what enforcement action to 
take, the Authority will always consider what is the most appropriate and proportionate step to 
promote the licensing objectives. Thames Valley Police suggest that the authority is not required 
to wait for offences to occur before deciding it needs to take appropriate action. Case law – 
notably East Lindsey District Council v Abu Hanif – states that the promotion of the licensing 
objectives requires a prospective consideration of what is warranted in the public interest having 
regard to the twin considerations of prevention and deterrence and respectfully ask that the 
licensing Sub-Committee take cognisance of this factor with regards to this review application.

A full transcript of this Case Law is outlined below:

Page 12



QBD, ADMINISTRATIVE COURT 

Neutral Citation Number: [2016] EWHC 1265 (Admin) 
CO/345/2016  

IN THE HIGH COURT OF JUSTICE 

QUEEN'S BENCH DIVISION  

THE ADMINISTRATIVE COURT  

Royal Courts of Justice 

Strand 

London WC2A 2LL 

Thursday, 14 April 2016 

B e f o r e:  

MR JUSTICE JAY 

Between:  

EAST LINDSEY DISTRICT COUNCIL 

Appellant 

v  

ABU HANIF 

(TRADING AS ZARA'S RESTAURANT AND TAKEAWAY) 

Page 13



Respondent  

Computer‑ Aided Transcript of the Stenograph Notes of 

WordWave International Limited trading as DTI  

165 Fleet Street  London EC4A 2DY 

Tel No: 020 7404 1400 Fax No: 020 7404 1424 

(Official Shorthand Writers to the Court) 

Mr P Kolvin QC & Mr D Dadds (instructed by David Dadds LLP) appeared on 
behalf of the Appellant  

The Respondent did not appear and was not represented 

J U D G M E N T 

(Approved)  

 

 
Crown copyright© 

 
1. MR JUSTICE JAY:  This is an appeal by way of case stated from the decision 

of the Lincoln Magistrates' Court, District Judge Veits, given on 23 June 2015, 
whereby he allowed an appeal from the revocation of a premises licence by 
the licensing authority.   

 
2. The appellant, the East Lindsey District Council, is the licensing authority.  

The 
Magistrates' Court in the usual way is not a party to these proceedings.  The 

Page 14



respondent, Mr Abu Hanif, trading as Zara's Restaurant and Takeaway, is the licence 
holder.  He through a licensing consultant has submitted correspondence making 
various limited points, but indicating that he would not be taking any part in these 
proceedings.   
 
3. The premises in question are Zara's Restaurant and Takeaway situated in 

North Summercoates on the Lincolnshire coast.  They are licensed to sell 
alcohol ancillary to the supply of food.  The restaurant is owned and managed 
by the licensee, Mr Hanif.  On 29 April 2014, the premises were the subject of 
a joint visit by the police and immigration officers, and it was discovered that 
Mr Miah was working in the kitchen as a chef.  It was common ground that 
Mr Miah had no current entitlement to remain in the UK, let alone to work.  I 
was told that he arrived here illegally some years ago.  Furthermore, it was 
also accepted by the respondent that he (i) employed Mr Miah without 
paperwork showing a right to work in the United Kingdom; (ii) paid Mr Miah 
cash in hand; (iii) paid Mr Miah less than the minimum wage; (iv) did not 
keep or maintain PAYE records; (v) purported to deduct tax from Mr Miah's 
salary; and (vi) did not account to HMRC for the tax deducted.   

 
4. The police then applied for a review of the respondent's licence under section 

51 of the Licensing Act 2003 and the matter came before the appellant's 
subcommittee on 30 June 2014.  The subcommittee decided to revoke the 
respondent's licence.  Its reasons were as follows: 

 
5. "The subcommittee were satisfied that Mr Hanif did not take the appropriate 

checks of staff members having knowledge that there were problems 
previously at the other premises with overstayers, and that he continued to 
allow staff to work at Zara's restaurant without making appropriate checks.   

 
6. The subcommittee were satisfied that Mr Hanif had not undertaken the 

relevant checks to ensure the employee concerned was eligible to work in the 
United Kingdom.  Instead of not allowing employees to work if they had not 
provided the correct documentation he allowed them to work and paid cash in 
hand.  With all this in mind the subcommittee were satisfied that Mr Hanif had 
knowingly employed person/s unlawfully in the United Kingdom.   

 
 

7. The subcommittee considered the evidence by Mr Kheng on behalf of Mr 
Hanif and the Home Office section 182 Guidance to Licensing Authorities.  
The subcommittee were of the view that the premises licence should be 
revoked and that revocation was an appropriate step with a view to promoting 
the crime prevention licensing objective." 

 
8. The respondent then appealed to the Magistrates' Court.  There was a hearing 

Page 15



on 27 March 2015, and on 23 June the district judge decided to allow the 
respondent's appeal.  On 1 September 2015, the district judge determined the 
issue of costs and on 7 January 2016 he stated the case.  The appeal to the 
district judge was de novo, but he accepted that he could only allow the appeal 
if the subcommittee's decision was "wrong", the burden being on the appellant 
before him to establish that.   

 
9. Looking now at the stated case, the district judge noted that the respondent 

had received a civil penalty for employing an illegal worker under section 15 
of the Immigration, Asylum and Nationality Act 2006.  An immigration 
officer gave evidence to the effect that although by virtue of section 21 a 
criminal offence was committed, such proceedings were rarely brought.  The 
district judge also noted that the police and the Council's licensing officer 
were no longer saying that the respondent was a serial offender, but a redacted 
report which was placed before the subcommittee still gave the impression 
that he "was in a much worse position than he actually was".  As for the 
failure to pay the minimum wage, the district judge said this: 

 
A.     "In his evidence before me Mr Hanif accepted that he had not paid the minimum 
wage and this in itself can be a criminal offence.  I found that this was not the main 
basis of the subcommittee's decision however and again there was no evidence that he 
had been reported for that alleged offence.  It would appear from their reasons that the 
subcommittee used the evidence of paying cash in hand as justification for the finding 
that he knowingly employed Mr Miah.  The prosecuting authority however appear to 
have taken a different view in offering the civil penalty." 
 
10.     The district judge's core reasoning was that no crime had been committed.  As 
he put it: 
 
A.     "It appeared to me that no crime had been committed as a result of the visit to 
the premises in April of last year.  A civil penalty had been imposed rather than 
prosecution for the section 21 offence and no other crime had been reported in 
relation to not paying the minimum wage." 
 
11. In the district judge's view, the crime prevention objective was not engaged.   
 
12. The district judge also criticised the subcommittee for adopting an inconsistent 

approach because in other similar cases only warnings were issued.  Finally, 
he considered that the subcommittee may have been influenced by comments 
in the police report, leading them to believe that they were dealing with a 
serial offender. 

13. At the conclusion of the stated case, the district judge posed two questions for 
my determination.  I will address these at the end of my judgment.

14. I was taken by Mr Philip Kolvin QC to various provisions of the Licensing 

Page 16



Act 2003 as amended.  Under section 4(1)and(2) a licensing authority must 
carry out its licensing functions with a view to promoting the licensing 
objectives, which include "the prevention of crime and disorder".  The 
provisions dealing with the review application brought by the police are 
contained in sections 51 and 52.  Under section 52(3), the licensing authority 
(and on appeal the Magistrates' Court):

A. "... must, having regard to the application and any relevant representations, 
take such of the steps mentioned in subsection (4) (if any) as it considers appropriate 
for the promotion of the licensing objectives."
15. The epithet "appropriate" was introduced by amendment in 2011.  Previously 

the test had been stricter.  In my judgment, it imports by necessary 
implication the concepts of proportionality and relevance.

16. Mr Kolvin submitted that the district judge erred in a number of respects.  
First, he wrongly held that, given that criminal proceedings were never 
brought, the crime prevention objective (see section 4(2)) was not engaged.  
The statute is concerned with the prevention rather than the fact of crime.  
Secondly, and in any event, the interested party had committed criminal 
offences in relation to tax evasion, the employment of an illegal worker, and 
employing an individual at remuneration below the minimum wage.  As for 
the employment of an illegal worker, Mr Kolvin accepted that this requires 
knowledge on the part of the employer, and he also accepted that it is not 
altogether clear whether the district judge found as a fact that the respondent 
possessed the requisite knowledge.  However, the core question is the 
promotion of the licensing objectives, not the fact of anterior criminal 
activity, and in this regard a deterrence approach is appropriate.

17. Thirdly, Mr Kolvin submitted that there was no evidence of an inconsistent 
approach by the subcommittee in giving warnings in some cases because all 
cases turn on their own facts.  Finally, Mr Kolvin submitted that there was no 
basis for the district judge's conclusion that the subcommittee may have been 
influenced by a suggestion that the respondent was a serial offender.

18. I accept Mr Kolvin's submissions.  In my view the district judge clearly erred.  
The question was not whether the respondent had been found guilty of 
criminal offences before a relevant tribunal, but whether revocation of his 
licence was appropriate and proportionate in the light of the salient licensing 
objectives, namely the prevention of crime and disorder.

This requires a much broader approach to the issue than the mere identification of 
criminal convictions.  It is in part retrospective, in as much as antecedent facts will 
usually impact on the statutory question, but importantly the prevention of crime and 
disorder requires a prospective consideration of what is warranted in the public 
interest, having regard to the twin considerations of prevention and deterrence.  The 
district judge's erroneous analysis of the law precluded any proper consideration of 
that issue.  In any event, I agree with Mr Kolvin that criminal convictions are not 

Page 17



required.   
19. To the extent that the analysis must be retrospective, the issue is whether, in 

the opinion of the relevant court seized of the appeal, criminal offences have 
been committed. In the instant case they clearly had been: in relation to tax 
evasion (see the common law offence of cheating the Revenue and the 
offence of fraudulent evasion of tax contrary to section 106A of the Taxes 
and Management Act 1970); and the employment of Mr Miah at 
remuneration below the minimum wage (see section 31 of the National 
Minimum Wage Act 1998).  Moreover, given the evidence that Mr Miah 
never provided the relevant paperwork, notwithstanding apparent requests, 
the obvious inference to be drawn is that the respondent well knew that he 
could not, and that no tax code and National Insurance number had been 
issued.  The corollary inference in my judgment is that the respondent well 
knew that Mr Miah could not provide the relevant paperwork because he was 
here illegally.

20. I also accept Mr Kolvin's submission that each case must turn on its own facts. 
As a matter of law, unless it could be said that some sort of estoppel or 
related abuse of process arose in the light of warnings given in other cases, 
the alleged inconsistent approach led nowhere.  In my judgment, it could not 
be so said.

21. Finally, I agree with Mr Kolvin that there is nothing in the point that the 
subcommittee could have been misled about the interested party being a 
serial offender.  The point that the subcommittee was making was the fact 
that the respondent had worked at premises where illegal workers were also 
employed meant that he should have been vigilant to the issue.

22. Thus the answer to the district judge's two questions are as follows:

A. Q.  "Was I correct to conclude that the crime prevention objective was not 
engaged as no crimes had been proceeded with, the appellant only receiving a 
civil penalty?" 

B. No.

C. Q.  "Was I correct in concluding that the respondent had been inconsistent in 
similar decisions in not revoking the licence [sic]?"

D. No.

23. Having identified errors of law in the district judge's decision, the next issue 
which arises is whether I should remit this case for determination in the light 
of my ruling or whether I have sufficient material to decide the issue for 
myself.  I should only adopt the latter course if satisfied that the issue is so 

Page 18



obvious that no useful purpose would be served by remission.  I am so 
satisfied.  Having regard in particular to the twin requirements of prevention 
and deterrence, there was in my judgment only one answer to this case.  The 
respondent exploited a vulnerable individual from his community by acting 
in plain, albeit covert, breach of the criminal law.  In my view his licence 
should be revoked. Another way of putting the matter is that the district 
judge had no proper basis for overturning the subcommittee's assessment of 
the merits.

24. It follows in my judgment that the only conclusion open to the district judge in 
the present case was to uphold the revocation of the respondent's licence.  
This appeal must be allowed and the respondent's licence must be revoked.

25. MR KOLVIN:  My Lord, I'm very grateful.  Can I deal with the question of 
costs, both here and below.

26. MR JUSTICE JAY:  Yes.

27. MR KOLVIN:  Should I start with here.

28. MR JUSTICE JAY:  Yes.

29. MR KOLVIN:  My Lord, we would ask for the costs before this court.  I just 
want to pray in aid four very brief points.  The first is the result.  The second 
is that the district judge's approach was expressly urged on him by the 
respondent's legal team.  Thirdly, that the respondent was expressly urged to 
concede this appeal to stop costs running, he was given that opportunity at 
pages 42 and 43 of the bundle.  Fourthly, perhaps a little bit tugging at the 
heart strings, but there's no reason why the Council Tax payers of East 
Lindsey should bear the cost of establishing what has been established in this 
court.  So we would ask for the costs up here.

30. There is a schedule and the schedule has been served upon Mr Hanif by letter 
dated 16 March of 2016.  I don't know whether the schedule has found its 
way to my Lord, if not I can hand up a copy.

31. MR JUSTICE JAY:  It has.

32. MR KOLVIN:  It has.  My Lord, I can see that VAT has been added on.  It 
doesn't need to be because of course the Council can retrieve the VAT, so my 
application is for £16,185.  I know there's not a lot of explanation around my 
fee, but it was taken on a single fee for all work involved in relation to the 
case stated; advice, the skeleton argument and attendance today, so it's one 
single ‑ ‑ 

Page 19



33. MR JUSTICE JAY:  What about your junior's fees?

34. MR KOLVIN:  My learned junior is also my instructing solicitor, he wears 
two hats.

35. MR JUSTICE JAY:  I see.

36. MR KOLVIN:  He has his own firm which is Dadds LLP, and he is also a 
member of the bar, so although he has appeared as my junior, his fee is 
wrapped up in the solicitors' fees set out in the schedule.

37. MR JUSTICE JAY:  Okay.  What about the costs below?

38. MR KOLVIN:  My Lord, I'm just trying to ascertain what the position is.

39. MR JUSTICE JAY:  I thought there was no order for costs below.

40. MR KOLVIN:  There was no order for costs below, that was on the basis that 
the appeal had been allowed.  The situation in relation to costs of licensing 
appeals are set out in section 181 of the Act, which enables the court to make 
such order as it thinks fit. Normally when appeals are dismissed there is no 
real question about it, costs follow the event.  When appeals are allowed, 
some further considerations come into play, which are expressed by the 
Master of the Rolls in a case which you may have come across called City of 
Bradford v Booth, which is the case where the Master of the Rolls said that 
local authorities shouldn't be put off from trying to make honest and 
reasonable decisions in the public interest.  And so one has to take account 
additionally of the means of the parties and their conduct in relation to the 
dispute, but in this case of course the appeal has now been dismissed, and so 
we would say that the ordinary rule is that the costs should follow the event, 
the appeal having failed.  I'm just trying to ascertain whether schedules were 
ever served below, in the light of the way the case came out. (Pause)

41. My Lord, I'm really sorry that we don't actually have the schedule here, 
apparently it was £15,000.  If you were minded to order costs below the 
options are either I suppose to wait and we will have the thing emailed up, or 
to say, "Look, it was below, it's a little bit more complex, they should be 
assessed if not agreed."

42. MR JUSTICE JAY:  This is going to wipe him out, isn't it?

43. MR KOLVIN:  Well he has already said, I have to say, I'm just telling you 
frankly what I've been told this morning, that when the bundles and the 
schedules were served on him, he had clearly read them, but he said, "If you 
win in the High Court and get costs against me, then I'm just going to declare 

Page 20



myself bankrupt."  So there may well be a bit of football(?) about this, but 
nonetheless it was his appeal, his team raised a point which in retrospect was 
very surprising, and caused an awful lot of costs to be incurred.

44. MR JUSTICE JAY:  Yes.  Well I am going to assess the costs here in the 
round figure of £15,000.

45. MR KOLVIN:  Thank you.

46. MR JUSTICE JAY:  If there was a schedule, which you tell me there was, 
below, it is proportionate that I assess those costs rather than put you to the 
trouble of a detailed assessment, so if you could have that emailed to my 
clerk in due course, I will assess the costs below.

47. MR KOLVIN:  Thank you, my Lord.

48. MR JUSTICE JAY:  On the basis of that schedule.

49. MR KOLVIN:  We're not trying to be too ambitious, but we would like to see 
what we can ‑ ‑

50. MR JUSTICE JAY:  I'll take a broad brush approach to that.

51. MR KOLVIN:  Thank you.

52. My Lord, the only other thing to mention is that this isn't the only case which 
is kicking around the east of England where licensing subcommittees are 
being urged to take no action because there has been no prosecution in these 
immigration cases.  Although I appreciate that this is hardly stellar law 
making, it's an application of pretty well established legal principles to the 
facts, I'm asking whether my Lord would be minded to certify this so that we 
can adduce the authority in other cases, because it's a clear statement of the 
law that there doesn't need to have been a prosecution.  So with the practice 
direction in mind, would my Lord be minded to ‑ ‑

53. MR JUSTICE JAY:  Just remind me of the practice direction.

54. MR KOLVIN:  Yes, can I hand it up?

55. MR JUSTICE JAY:  Yes. (Handed)

56. MR KOLVIN:  If Mr Hanif had come I wouldn't need to make the application.  
It's paragraph 6.1.  The judgment has to clearly indicate that it purports to 
establish a new principle or extends the present law and that has to take the 

Page 21



form of an express statement to that effect, and then 6.2 says what categories 
of judgment we're dealing with, which include applications attended by one 
party only.

57. So that's the situation we're in.  In reality these judgments get around anyway, 
because we're dealing with administrative tribunals and not courts, but 
sometimes the point is taken, "Ah yes, but the court didn't certify".

58. MR JUSTICE JAY:  But where's the new principle I've established?

59. MR KOLVIN:  My Lord, what you have said clearly, which hasn't been said 
before, by dint of the fact that not many licensing cases reach the lofty 
heights of this building, is that there does not need to have been a 
prosecution in order for the crime to have ‑ ‑

60. MR JUSTICE JAY:  Oh, I see.  Well that's so obvious it almost goes without 
saying, that's why it hasn't been said before.

61. MR KOLVIN:  My Lord, it was obvious to everyone except the district judge, 
the appellant and other licensees in the east of England.

62. MR JUSTICE JAY:  Okay.

63. In terms of the logistics, if you want a copy of the judgment, don't you have to 
pay for it?

64. MR KOLVIN:  We may have to, and we would be obviously very pleased to 
do so.

65. MR JUSTICE JAY:  Because I'm not sure that all judgments are, in the 
Administrative Court, they're not all transcribed and published.

66. MR KOLVIN:  That is correct, and I have no doubt that my client would be ‑ 
this isn't a matter about the costs of the judgment.

67. MR JUSTICE JAY:  No, fortunately it doesn't cost that much.  But I will give 
the certification.  I have never been asked to do so before, I must confess.

68. MR KOLVIN:  Yes.

69. MR JUSTICE JAY:  Because these cases are referred to almost willy nilly, if 
they're available on Lawtel or wherever.

Page 22



70. MR KOLVIN:  Yes, they are.

71. MR JUSTICE JAY:  Then they're just provided.

72. MR KOLVIN:  They get into the textbooks and they ‑ ‑

73. MR JUSTICE JAY:  No‑ one objects.

74. MR KOLVIN:  Yes.  It has happened once before, in relation to the meaning 
of the Court of Appeal judgment in Hope and Glory, and Lindblom J, as he 
then was, was asked repeatedly would he certify in relation to the meaning of 
Hope and Glory, which is an important test, and he was pretty engaged in the 
practice direction.  But since then that judgment, there's always an argument 
in court about whether it can be cited or not.  The difference between 
licensing and some other fields of law is that very few cases reach here, so 
when they do, the judgments of High Court judges are gold dust.

75. MR JUSTICE JAY:  Yes, well I'm happy to make the certification.

76. MR KOLVIN:  Thank you very much indeed.

77. MR JUSTICE JAY:  We wouldn't want this point to be taken again 
successfully.

78. MR KOLVIN:  No.

79. MR JUSTICE JAY:  Now as a matter of courtesy, is the judgment, once 
available, sent to the district judge, or is it something that I should do 
informally?

80. MR KOLVIN:  I don't know, my Lord, what the normal practice is.  I don't 
think that I have previously been on a legal team which has sent judgments, 
but we're very happy to undertake to do so.

81. MR JUSTICE JAY:  Yes, I think if you're going to get a copy, obviously 
you're going to send it to the respondent ‑ ‑

82. MR KOLVIN:  Indeed.

83. MR JUSTICE JAY:  ‑ ‑ so he can ingest it.  I think you should send it to the 
district judge, just saying that the judge directed that out of courtesy he 
should see it.

Page 23



84. MR KOLVIN:  We're very happy to do that.  Thank you very much indeed.

85. MR JUSTICE JAY:  Thank you very much.

Page 24



Appendices

Appendix 1 – Occurrence 43180014912 relating to assault on 12/01/2018.
Appendix 2 a & b – 2 x Gen 40 from PC Green relating to assault on 12/01/2018.
Appendix 3 – Gen 40 from PS Chapman 13-14/01/2018.
Appendix 4 – Gen 40 from Officer Peel 19/01/2016.
Appendix 5 – Joint TVP/WBC inspection sheet completed on 26/01/2018.
Appendix 6 – Copy of Section 19 Closure Notice issued on 26/01/2018.
Appendix 7 – Gen 40 from PC Thomas 04/02/2018.
Appendix 8 – Gen 40 from PC Burford 10/02/2018.
Appendix 9 – Gen 40 from PC Hill 11/02/2018.
Appendix 10 – Letter sent by Andy Dean (TVP) to the DPS Mr Anderson on 28/02/18.
Appendix 11 – Gen 40 from PC Hanson 03/03/2018.
Appendix 12 – Letter sent by PC Wheeler to the DPS on 04/03/2018.
Appendix 13 – Gen 40 from PC Bull 10/03/2018.
Appendix 14a – Gen 40 from PC Burford 18/03/2018.
Appendix 14b – Gen 40 from PC Hubbard-Clark
Appendix 15 – Gen 40 from PS Chapman 25/03/2018.
Appendix 16 – Gen 40 from PC Howard 05/05/2018.
Appendix 17 – Gen 40 from PC Gawronski 05/05/2018.
Appendix 18 – Gen 40 from PC Thomas 13/05/2018.
Appendix 19 – Gen 40 from PC Herd 01/12/2018.
Appendix 20 – Copy of Section 19 Closure Notice issued on 10/01/2019.
Appendix 21 – Gen 40 from PC Anderson 02-03-02/2019.
Appendix 22 – Licensing Inspection sheet carried out by PC Allen on 09/02/2019.
Appendix 23 – Letter sent by PC Sowden to the DPS on 13/02/2019.
Appendix 24 – Gen 40 from PC Hall 21/02/2019.
Appendix 25 – Letter from Chief Inspector Finch to Mr Anderson.
Appendix 26 – TVP Licensed Premises Summary report from 12 June 2018 to 26 June 2019.
Appendix 27 – URN list of reported incidents between January 2018 and June 2019.

Page 25



                                                                                                                                  Please tick  yes
Have you made an application for review relating to the
premises before

If yes please state the date of that application Day Month Year
               

If you have made representations before relating to the premises please state what they were 
and when you made them
     

Page 26



                                                                                                                                  Please tick  
yes

 I have sent copies of this form and enclosures to the responsible authorities 
and the premises licence holder or club holding the club premises certificate, 
as appropriate

 I understand that if I do not comply with the above requirements my 
application will be rejected

IT IS AN OFFENCE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003, TO MAKE 
A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION. THOSE 
WHO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT MAY BE LIABLE ON SUMMARY CONVICTION 
TO A FINE OF ANY AMOUNT.  

Part 3 – Signatures   (please read guidance note 4)

Signature of applicant or applicant’s solicitor or other duly authorised agent (please read 
guidance note 5). If signing on behalf of the applicant please state in what capacity.

Signature     
…………………………………………………………………………………………………

Date             28/07/2019
…………………………………………………………………………………………………

Capacity      Thames Valley Police (Authorised officer) Reading/West Berkshire LPA
…………………………………………………………………………………………………

Contact name (where not previously given) and postal address for correspondence 
associated with this application (please read guidance note 6)
     

Post town
     

Post Code
     

Telephone number (if any)       
If you would prefer us to correspond with you using an e-mail address your e-mail address 
(optional)      

Page 27



Notes for Guidance 

1. A responsible authority includes the local police, fire and rescue authority and other 
statutory bodies which exercise specific functions in the local area.

2. The ground(s) for review must be based on one of the licensing objectives.
3. Please list any additional information or details for example dates of problems which are 

included in the grounds for review if available.
4. The application form must be signed.
5. An applicant’s agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on their behalf provided 

that they have actual authority to do so.
6. This is the address which we shall use to correspond with you about this application.

Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Environm .nta! Heafth • Brackneli Forest
West Berkshire

& L)•:ensIng Woklngham

12 January 2018

Big Fish Clubs UK Ltd Public Protection Partnership
24 - 26 Fleet Street Environmental Health and Licensing

• 4 West Berkshire District Councilowinuon Council Offices
Wiltshire Market Street Newbury
SN1 1RQ Berkshire RG14SLD

Our Rel: 17/01614/lflN
Please ask for: Cheryl Lambert
Direct Line: 01635 519184
Fax: 01635519172
e-mail: Cheryi.Lambort@westberks.gov.uk

Dear Sir/Madam

Licensing Act 2003 — Premises Licence
4A The Kennet Centre, Newbury, BerkshIre, RG14 5EN,

Please find enclosed your Premises Licence. The licence must be retained by you whilst you are
responsible for the premises and must be available on request, by any authorised officer.

The licence is accompanied by a Premises Licence Summary. This document must be displayed
in a prominent position within the premises at all times.

It is the responsibility of the licence holder to check that the licence details are correct. If
incorrect, you must contact the Licensing Team, in Writing and state clearly why you believe the
licence details are wrong. Where errors have been made and are the responsibility of the
Council, they will be rectified as soon as possible. if errors have been made by the applicant in
filling out the application, these will need to be addressed by making a variation to the licence
Issued.

The annual tee will be due on the date oF issue of the licence each year, You will be sent an
invoice prior to the anniversary of the issue date and failure to pay may result in suspension of
the Premises Licence. Invoices are sent to the Premises Licence Holder at their registered
address as quoted on the Licence.

You are reminded that the Designated Premises Supervisor’s details must be correctly stated on
the licence at all times and that all sales of alcohol must be authorised by a Personal Licence
Holder. (Clubs and non alcohol licensed premises are exempted from this requirement).

Yours f fully

icr
Li sing am

PUBUC PROTECTION PARTNERSHIP
A SHARED SERVICE PROVIDED BY BRACKNELL FOREST COUNCIL, WEST BERKSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL
AND WOKINGHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL

Ashared service provided by ç ITT
Bracknell Forest Council, vestBerkshire . P101MM

Council c 0 U H C I

Page 77



West Berkshire District Council
Public Protection Partnership, Environmental Health & Licensing, Council Offices, Market Street,

Newbury, Berkshire RG14 GLD
Tel: (01635) 519184 Fax (01635) 519172

Licensing Act 2003
Premises Licence

Uniform Ref: 17/01614/tON

Premises licence number 17!01614!LQN

Part 1 - Premises details

Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or
description

The Vault Club
4A The Kennet Centre, Newbury, Berkshire, RG14 5EN

Licensable activities authorised by the licence

Boxing or Wrestling Entertainment
Performance of Live Music
Recorded Music
Performance of Dance
Late Night Refreshment
Supply of Alcohol

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable actIvities

Boxing or Wrestling Entertainment
Friday & Saturday: 13:00 to 23:00

Activity will take place Indoors/Outdoors : Indoors

Performance of Live Music
Monday to Sunday: 11:00 to 03:30

Activity will take place IndoorslOutdoors : Indoors

Recorded Music
Monday to Sunday: 11:00 to 03:30

Activity will take place Indoors/Outdoors: Indoors

Seasonal Details: Activities extended by one hour for British summertime.

Performance of Dance
Friday to Sunday: 11:00 to 03:30

ActMty will take place Indoors/Outdoors : Indoors

1

Page 78



Late Night Refreshment
Monday to Sunday: 11:00 to 03:30

Activity will take place Indoors/Outdoors: Indoors

Seasonal Details: Activities extended by one hour for British summertime.

Supply of Alcohol
Monday to Sunday: 11:00 to 03:00

Alcohol QnJQff Premises: On Premises

Seasonal Details: Activities extended by one hour for British summertime.

The opening hours of the premises

Monday to Sunday: 11:00 to 03:30

Seasonal Details: Activities extended by one hour for British summertime.

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/or off
supplies

On/Off Sales: ON

2

Page 79



Part 2
Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of
holder of premises licence

Big Fish Clubs UK Ltd
24-26 Fleet Street, Swindon, Wiltshire, SN1 1RQ

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number
(where applicable)

09610080

Name, address and telephone number of designated premises supervisor where
the premises licence authorises the supply of alcohol

Mr Robert William Anderson

Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by
designated premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises the
supply of alcohol

S8114O221LIPER Swindon Borough Council

ftzA
Date: 12th January 2018 Signed:

Authorised Officer

Licence granled 0610112018

3

Page 80



Annex 1 - Mandatory conditions

Premises - Supply of Alcohol

1. No supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence-

a) at a time when there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the premises
licence, or

b) at a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal licence
or his personal licence is suspended.

2. Every supply of alcohoL under the premises licence must be made or authorised by a
person who holds a personal licence.

The Licensing Act 2003 (Mandatory Licensing Conditions) (Amendment) Order 2014
(in force 1 October 2014)

3.
1) The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry out,

arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the premises.

2) In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the following

activities, or substantially similar activities, carded on for the purpose of encouraging

the sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises —

a) games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require

or encourage, individuals to —

i. drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol sold

or supplied on the premises before the cessation of the period in which the

responsible person is authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or

ii. drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise);

b) provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or

discounted fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in

a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective;

c) provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage

or reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or

less in a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing

objective;

d) selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on,

or in the vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to

condone, encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour or to refer to the effects

of drunkenness in any favourable manner;

e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person Into the mouth of another (other than

where that other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of

disability).

4

Page 81



4. The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to

customers where It is reasonably available.

5.

(1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure

that an age verification policy Is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the

sale or supply of alcohol.

(2) The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must

ensure that the supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with the

age verification policy.

(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to

be under 18 years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to

produce on request, before being served alcohol, identification bearing their

photograph, date of birth and either -

a) a holographic mark, or

b) an ultraviolet feature.

6. The responsible person must ensure that -

a) where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on the

premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up in

advance ready for sale or supply in a securely closed container) it is available to

customers in the following measures -

i. beer or cider ½ pint;

ii. gin, rum, vodka or whisky; 25 ml or 35 ml; and

lii. still wine in a glass: 125 ml;

b) these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material which is

available to customers on the premises; and

c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of

alcohol to be sold, the customer is made aware that these measures are available.”

7.
(1) A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption

on or off the premises for a price which is less than the permitted price.

(2) For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 1 —

a) “duty” is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 1979

b) “permitted price” is the price found by applying the formula -

P = D + (D x V)

Where—

5

Page 82



(i) P is the permitted price,

(ii) 0 is the rate of duty chargeable in retation to the alcohol as if the duty were

charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and

(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the

value added tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the

alcohol;

c) “relevant persons means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in
force a premises licence—

(I) the holder of the premises licence,
(ii) the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, or
(iii) the personat licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol

under such a licence;

d) “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in
force a club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the
premises in a capacity which enables the member or officer to prevent the supply
in question; and

e) “valued added tax” means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value
Added Tax Act 1994

(3) Where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 would (apart from
this paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub
paragraph shall be taken to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph
rounded up to the nearest penny.

(4)

1) Sub-paragraph (2) applies where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b)
of paragraph 2 on a day (“the first dat’) would be different from the permitted price
on the next day (“the second daf) as a result of a change to the rate of duty or
value added tax.

2) The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or
supplies of alcohol which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days
beginning on the second day.

6

Page 83



Premises - Door Supervision

1. Where a premises licence includes a condition that at specified times one or more
individuals must be at the premises to carry out a security activity, the licence must
include a condition that each such individual must be licensed by the Security
Industry Authority.

2. But nothing in subsection (1) requires such a condition to be imposed-

a) in respect of premises within paragraph 8(3)(a) of Schedule 2 to the Private
Security Industry Act 2001 (c.1 2) (premises with premises licences authorising
plays or films), or

b) in respect of premises in relation to -

i. any occasion mentioned in paragraph 8(3)(b) or (c) of that Schedule
(premises being used exclusively by club with club premises certificate,
under a temporary event notice authorising plays or films or under a
gaming licence), or

ii. any occasion within paragraph 8(3)(d) of that Schedule (occasions prescribed
by regulations under the Act).

3. For the purposes of this section-

a) security activity means an activity to which paragraph 2(1)(a) of the Schedule
applies, and

b) paragraph 8(5) of that Schedule (interpretation of references to an occasion)
applies as it applies in relation to paragraph 8 of the Schedule.

Annex 2- Conditions consistent with the operating Schedule dated 15111/2017

Prevention of Crime and Disorder

During periods when regulated entertainment is being provided and the premises is open to
the public, a nominated individual with appropriate training and experience will be identified
as being responsible for all bar areas.

Public Safety

1. No drinks such as glasses or bottles will be permitted on any dance floor area or
smoking area.

2. The maximum capacity for the premises will be determined by an internal risk
assessment (this will include all members of staff and visiting entertainers).

3. The DPS/ management will adopt a policy for any emergency or evacuation of the
premises and ensure all staff including door staff are trained in the content of the
policy.

Protection of Children from Harm

1. Persons under the age of 18 will not be permitted to play any sort of AWP machine.

2. During events such as an under 18 event all AWP machines will be switched off.

3. During such events as an under 18 event the premises smoking area will be closed
and under 18’s will not be permitted to smoke.

4. When under 18 events are being held all alcohol will be removed and not be visible
during the duration of the event

7

Page 84



Conditions agreed with Thames Valley Police 12/1212017

Operation of the Premises

Hours of operation and Entry restrictions

1. The terminal hour for cessation of alcohol on Monday to Sunday shall be 03:00.

2. Hours open to the public 03:30.

3. The PLH shall ensure that no new customers shall be permitted entry to the premises
after 01.30 on Monday to Sunday.

Re-admission to existing customers to retrieve personal belongings and those who
have gone outside to use the smoking area is permitted, subject to a search by the
Door Staff prior to being let back inside.

4. An entry, closure and dispersal policy for controlling the opening and closing of the
premises and the departure of customers from the premises at the conclusion of the
licensed activities shall be put in place and shall be actively operated. The policy
shall be in written format and made available upon request to an authorised officer of
West Berkshire Council and Thames Valley Police.

5. Recorded music shall be reduced to background level 30 minutes before the end of
the time that the premises is permitted to be open to the public.

Protection of Children from Harm

Challenge 25 & Age verification

1. At all times that the premises is operating under this licence, the Premises Licence
Holder shall ensure that its staff operate a Challenge 25 Policy (to minimise the risk
of alcohol being sold to underage customers). This Policy shall (as a minimum
provide) that before entiy (or alternatively before any sale of alcohol), any person
who appears to be under the age of 25 will be required to produce photo ID in the
form of a passport; driving licence, UK Military ID card; PASS (or similar) card to
prove that he/she is over the age of 18, before being permitted;

2. Notices advertising the Challenge 25 and proof of age policies shall be displayed in
prominent places in the premises so that they can be seen internally and externally;

3. The Premises Licence Holder shall display in a prominent position a copy of their
policy on checking proof of age.

Age Policy

At all times that the premises is operating under this licence no person under the age of
eighteen years old will be allowed entry onto the premises.

Prevention of Crime and Disorder

Admission Policies ID Scan

1. ID SCAN shall be available as a condition of entry and specifically the PLH’s staff
shall:

a) Operate 100% ID Scanning for all customers from 22:00 till last entry Mon - Sun
inclusive.

b) From when its security personnel start shift, daily operate an ID scan of all
customers reasonably thought to be under 25; and

c) Shall ID scan any potential customer of any age at any time in large groups or
when intelligence led;

8

Page 85



“Customer’ for the purposes of this condition shall include any patron; non-regular Staff,
promoters and performers entering the premises. This condition shall not apply to headline
performers and regular staff members whose identity is already known to PLH staff;

The ID Scan Device shall record the names and dates of birth of all persons entering the
premises and retain the image and details of the ID. These records shall be kept for a
minimum of thirty one days and shall be made available to any authoñsed Officer of WP or
an authorised Officer of West Berkshire Council;

Records shall be made available to an authorised officer of TVP or an authorised officer of
West Berkshire Council together with facilities for viewing with immediate access by a
person qualified to operate the system;

Any breakdown or system failure will be notified to WP immediately and remedied as soon
as practicable;

2. The Designated Premises Supervisor shall ensure licenced security staff shall
manage persons awaiting entry to the premises. Management shall ensure queuing
customers do not obstruct the thoroughfare. This shall include any designated
smoking areas.

Search Policy

1. The Premises Licence Holder shall Implement a written search policy (following
discussion with TVP), to minimise the risk of illegal weapons and drugs being brought
onto the premises, including search, detection, confiscation, storage and disposal of
drugs procedures. The search policy shall provide, as a minimum:

a) For 100% search of all customers attempting to enter the premises, from 22:00
till last entry Mon - Sun;

2. Notices shall be displayed advising the public that the right to conduct an outer body
search is reserved as a condition of entry, and that the Thames Valley Police shall be
informed if anyone is found in possession of illegal drugs or offensive weapons;

CCTV

The premises licence holder shall ensure the premises digitally recorded CCW system
cameras shall continually record whilst the premises are open to the public and recordings
shall be kept for a minimum of 31 days with time and date stamping.

The entire licensable area shall be covered by the CCTV. Data recordings shall be made
immediately available to an authorised officer of Thames Valley Police or West Berkshire
Council together with facilities for viewing upon request, subject to the provisions of the Data
Protection Act. Recorded Images shall be of such quality as to be able to identify the
recorded person in any light. At least one member of staff on the premises at any time during
operating hours shall be trained to access and download material from the CCW system.

Event Plans

1. A written Event Management Plan for events where the predominant licensable
activities involve the performance of recorded or live music with dancing shall be
submitted to Thames Valley PoUce and West Berkshire Council setting out how the
event will be managed and the precautions which have been taken to cater for all
reasonably foreseeable contingencies and which will demonstrate the procedures,
roles and specific responsibilities of the management team, security and associated
personnel. The finalised version of such a plan must be submitted at least 14 days
prior to the commencement of the event.

2. No event organised by an external promoter shall take place at the premises unless:

a) A written Event Management Plan for the proposed event has been forwarded to
Thames Valley Police and West Berkshire Council no less than 14 days prior to
the commencement of the event and;

9

Page 86



b) Thames Valley Police in the form of an officer of at least the rank of Chief
Inspector have not provided the licence holder with a reasonable objection to the
holding of the event which is maintained at the time that the event takes place.
The Event Management Plan to be provided shall include details of the promoter
and any performers that are proposed to perform and shall take account of any
intelligence sources readily available to the licence holder. In particular, the
name of the proposed headliner shall be checked on the ID Scan device.

Radio System

The Premises Licence Holder shall participate, as far as is practicable, in the Local Shop
Watch Radio Scheme when the premises are open for licensable activities after 21 :OOhrs
Mon - Sun.

Pubwatch

The premises licence holder must ensure that the Designated Premises Supervisor holds
membership of, and actively participates in the Local Pub Watch Scheme, including making
use of apparatus supplied as part of the scheme.

Incident Book

An incident/refusal book shall be used to record details of incidents that occur in and around
the venue and refusal of sale of alcohol. The incident book shall truly reflect what has
occurred and shall be specific in detail. All incidents shall be signed off by either the Head
Door Supervisor; the DPS or the nominated individual when DPS is not on site. The
premises licence holder shall ensure a recorded weekly review of the incident/refusal book
by the DPS shall be carried.

Door Supervisors

The Premise Licence holder shall keep and maintain a register of door supervisors.

1. The register will show the following details:

a) The name, home address and registration number of all door supervisors working
at the premises.

b) SIA registration number.

c) Date and time that the door supervisor commenced duty, countersigned by the
Designated Premises Supervisor or Duty Manager.

d) Any incident of crime and disorder, or concerning children must be recorded giving
names of the door supervisors involved.

e) Date and time the door supervisor finished work, countersigned by the Designated
Premises Supervisor or Duty Manager.

f) The door supervisor register must be kept at the licensed premises and be
available for inspection by Thames Valley Police or an authorised officer from
West Berkshire Council and shall be retained for period of six months from the
date of the event.

2. The Premises Licence holder shall ensure that all Door Supervisors whilst employed
at the Premises shall wear ‘High Visibility’ arm bands to incorporate displaying their
SIA badges.

3. The Premises Licence Holder shall ensure that at least one female door supervisor
shall be employed and available where appropriate. eg: if a female customer is
subject to a body search.

4. The premises licence holder must ensure that a minimum of 3 door supervisors are
employed whenever regulated entertainment is planned to take place Monday to
Sunday inclusive to manage entry to the premises and searching processes.

10

Page 87



A further door supervisor shall be employed for every 100 persons (See example below)

The Premises Licence Holder shall risk assess the requirement to increase the ratio to 1:75
and a copy of that risk assessment must be available on request by Thames Valley Police or
an authorised officer from West Berkshire Council.

Eg

0 persons = 3 Door Supervisors

100 persons = 4 Door Supervisors

200 persons = 5 Door supervisors

300 Persons = 6 Door Supervisors

400 Persons = 7 Door Supervisors

500 Persons = 8 Door Supervisors

600 Persons = 9 Door Supervisors

700 Persons = 10 Door Supervisors

800 Persons = 11 Door Supervisors
And so forth.

5. Whilst Door Supervisors are employed at the premises a minimum of one Door
Supervisor working on the entrancel exit to the Club will be deployed with digitally
recording Body Worn Video (5WV). The BWV will be used to record any incidents
which occur outside of the premises involving customers either entering, exiting or in
any queue or external smoking area that impact any of the four licensing objectives.

Data recordings shall be made immediately available to an authodsed officer of
Thames Valley Police or West Berkshire Council together with facilities for viewing
upon request, subject to the provisions of the Data Protection Act.

Public Safety

Measures to minimise the risk of entry of intoxicated customers

The Premises Licence Holder shall have a breathalyser unit available for Security staff to
use at their discretion as an aid to determine the intoxication of customers trying to gain
entry.

Staff training & alcohol sales

Staff employed to sell alcohol shall undergo training upon induction. This training shall
include but not be limited to:-

• The premises age verification policy
• Dealing with refusal of sales
• Proxy purchasing
• Recognising valid identity documents not in the English language
• Identifying attempts by intoxicated persons to purchase alcohol
• Identifying signs of intoxication
• Conflict management
• How to identify and safeguard vulnerable persons who attend and leave the premises
• Drug Policy and substance awareness and effects
• Search Policy
• Dispersal Policy
• Crime scene preservation
• Child Sexual Exploitation

11

Page 88



Refresher training shall be provided every 3 (three) months and signed records made
available for inspection by a Police Officer or authorised officer of West Berkshire Council
upon request. Written records are to be kept for a minimum of 2 (two) years of the date of
training.

Polycarbonate

The premises licence holder shall ensure that all draught alcoholic, draught non-alcoholic
and spirits are served in polycarbonate containers.

All alcoholic and non-alcoholic bottled drinks where possible should be served in plastic
bottles.

Whenever plastic bottles are not available and glass bottles are supplied the premises
licence holder shall conduct a written risk assessment. The risk assessment shall Include a
consideration to decant the drinks into polycarbonate containers, and a rationale provided
whenever this measure is precluded.

The risk assessment shall be made available to an authorised officer of Thames Valley
Police or West Berkshire Council upon request.

Prevention of Public Nuisance

Signage

Signs will be prominently displayed on the premises to encourage customers to leave the
premises quietly.

Conditions agreed with Trading Standards 06/1212017

1. All staff employed in the sale of alcohol shall be trained in respect of the law relating
to the sale of alcohol, The training shall include: Details of the Challenge 25 Policy
operated by the premises, how to ask for ID, what ID to accept, what to do if a
customer complains about being refused/asker and how to record any challenges.
This training will be documented in writing and made available on request to Thames
Valley Police, Trading Standards & Licensing Officers. Staff will be trained at least
every 6 months and the content of the training will be reviewed and updated on a
regular basis.

2. The premises shall maintain a refusals register. This register should detail the
following information: Date, time, member of staff, what was requested, whether ID
was produced, if so what ID, or the reason for refusal. A responsible member of staff
will review and sign the refusals register at least once a week

12

Page 89



Conditions agreed with Environmental Health 07/12/17

Noise and Vibration

1. The volume of amplified music within the premises should be played at a level that is
appropriate to the circumstances such as the time of day and the degree of sound
insulation afforded by the buildings in relation to the distance of the premises from
dwellings or other noise sensitive premises.

2. All doors and windows to rooms in which amplified speech or music is taking place
should be kept closed, other than for access and egress. In addition the doors to the
entrance lobby should similarly be kept closed when amplified speech or music is
taking place.

3. No amplified music or speech shall be relayed via external loudspeakers.

4. A noise limiting device must be installed at the premises and maintained in such a
manner as to control all sources of amplified music and speech at the premises. The
device must be:-

• used at all times during the entertainment;
• set at a level agreed in writing with the Council; and
• sealed in a manner, which is tamper proof.

5. The licensee or nominated representative during operation of regulated
entertainment should monitor the noise levels outside the premises. A record of the
monitoring, any action taken and any matters giving rise to concern shall be
maintained in a log book.

6. Prominent, clear and legible notices must be displayed at all exits requesting the
public to respect the needs of local residents and to leave the premises and the area
quietly.

7. The licensee or a nominated representative shall receive and respond to complaints
of noise throughout the duration of all entertainment and during the time that patrons
are leaving the premises.

8. Staff must be given adequate training to ensure they keep noise levels to a minimum
when leaving the premises.

9. The licensee or nominated representative should monitor the effect of patrons
leaving the premises from time to time and at least once a week. A record of the
monitoring and of any matters gMng rise to concern shall be maintained in a log
book.

Refuse

10. Refuse, such as bottles, shall not be placed into receptacles outside the premises
between 22:00 hours and D8:OO hours in order to minimise the disturbance to nearby
properties.

11. Waste receptacles shall be provided and placed outside the entrance lobby in order
to minimise litter from food wrappings and soft drinks.

Annex 3-Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority

None

Annex 4- Plans as submitted 15/11/2017

13

Page 90



t
b
.
:

-
.
—

,
-
-
_

_
—

-
—

-
-
-

-

Page 91



West Berkshire District Council
Public Protection Partnership, Environmental Health & Ucensing, Council Offices, Market Streel,

Newbury, Berkshire HG14 5LD
Tel: (01635) 519184 Fax(01635) 519172

Licensing Act 2003
Premises Licence Summary

Uniform Ru: 17/01 61 4/LQN

Premises licence number 17/0161 4/LON

Premises details

Postal address of premises, or it none, ordnance survey map reference or
description

The Vault Club
4A The Kennet Centre. Newbury, Berkshire, RG14 5EN

Licensable activities authorised by the licence

Boxing or Wrestling Entertainment
Performance of Live Music
Recorded Music
Performance of Dance
Late Night Refreshment
Supply of Alcohol

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities

Boxing or Wrestling Entertainment
Friday & Saturday: 13:00 to 23:00

Activity will take place Indoors/Outdoors Indoors

Performance of Live Music
Monday to Sunday: 11:00 to 03:30

Activity will take place Indoors/Outdoors: Indoors

Recorded Music
Monday to Sunday: 11:00 to 03:30

Activity will take place Indoors/Outdoors: Indoors

Seasonal Details: Activities extended by one hour for British summertime.

Performance of Dance
Friday to Sunday: 11:00 to 03:30

Activity will take place Indoors/Outdoors : indoors

Page 92



Name, (registered) address of holder of premises licence

Big Fish Clubs UK Ltd
24-26 Fleet Street, Swindon, Wiltshire, SN1 1RQ

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number
(where applicable)

09610080

Name of designated premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises
the supply of alcohol

Mr Robert William Anderson

State whether access to the premises by children is restricted or prohibited

At all times that the premises is operating under this licence no person under the age of
eighteen years old will be allowed entry onto the premises.

Date: 12th January 2018 Signed:
Authorised Officer

Licence granted 06/0112018

Late Night Refreshment
Monday to Sunday: 11:00 to 03:30

Activity will take place Indoors/Outdoors: Indoors

Seasonal Details: Activities extended by one hour for British summertime.

Supply of Alcohol
Monday to Sunday: 11:00 to 03:00

Alcohol On/Off Premises: On Premises

Seasonal Details: Activities extended by one hour for British summertime.

The opening hours of the premises

Monday to Sunday: 11:00 to 03:30

Seasonal Details: Activities extended by one hour for British summertime.

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on andlor oil
supplies

O&Off Sales: ON

Page 93



Page 94


	Agenda
	2(1) Application No. 17/01614/LQN - The Vault Club, 4A The Kennet Centre, Newbury
	Vault Club Hearing Appendices July 2019
	The Vault Premises Licence


